UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council E/ ON. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19

20 August 1998

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS

SUB- COMM SSI ON ON PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AND
PROTECTI ON OF M NORI TI ES

Fiftieth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 19t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 14 August 1998, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. GUI SSE

CONTENTS
ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK:
(c)  METHODS OF WORK OF THE SUB- COMM SSI ON ( cont i nued)

CONTEMPORARY FORM5S OF SLAVERY (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the
Sub- Conmi ssion at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto
be issued shortly after the end of the session

GE. 98-13830 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK:
(c) METHODS OF WORK OF THE SUB- COVMM SSI ON (agenda item 1) (continued)

1. M. ALFONSO MARTI NEZ said he understood that the deadline for submi ssion
of draft resolutions under agenda item 2, previously set at 10 a.m that
nmor ni ng (Friday), had been extended by the Bureau w thout an officia
announcenent. Had he been present at the Bureau neeting, he would have argued
agai nst an extension although he woul d, of course, have accepted the decision
of the majority.

2. The CHAI RMAN said that the experts involved in drafting resolutions or
who intended to subnmit draft resolutions had requested tinme to arrange
meetings with representatives of the Governments of the countries concerned to
ascertain how the draft resolutions nmight be inplemented. Where the parties

i nvolved were willing to negotiate, it was thought preferable to reach an

am cabl e agreenent than to adopt an over-rigid approach. The Bureau had

unani nously acceded to the request.

3. Ms. WARZAZI said that she had requested an extension until the
foll owi ng Monday norning so that negotiations on two or three draft
resolutions could take place over the weekend. The Chairman had feared that
an announcenent of the extension mght entail delays in the finalization of
all draft resolutions. She apologized to M. Alfonso Martinez for any

i nconveni ence resulting fromthe decision

4, M. ALFONSO MARTI NEZ said he objected to the unofficial extension of the
deadline. Transparency in the Sub-Comr ssion's procedures was essenti al
especially at a tinme when it was under scrutiny by the Conm ssion on

Human Ri ghts.

CONTEMPORARY FORMS OF SLAVERY (agenda item 6) (continued)
(E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 12, 13 and 14; E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ NG 6;
E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ CRP. 1)

5. Ms. BAI LEY- W EBECKE (Pax Romana) said that the rape that had been
organi zed on higher orders during the riots in Indonesia was a formof torture
and, because of its systematic nature, a crine against humanity. The

I ndonesi an Governnent's apol ogy could not therefore be accepted. The
authorities nust take genuine action to bring the culprits to justice and to
dismantl e the structures in the armed forces that were the root cause of the
abhorrent events. Gang rapes had continued frommd-May to md-July 1998,
initially targeting ethnic Chinese wonen and subsequently extending to the

wi der popul ation and to human rights activists. The Team of Vol unteers of
Humani tari an Causes, rape victins and their fanm lies had received death
threats and threats of abduction for exposing the truth about the gang rapes.
According to reports by non-governnental organi zations (NGOs), 625 rapes had
occurred in Aceh, northern Sumatra, over the past seven years.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 3

6. There had been many conplaints of rape, nolestation and other forms of
sexual abuse by the Indian arny against the Jammu wonen of Kashmir during
counter-insurgency operations.

7. Reports of rape of Tami| wonmen by the Sri Lankan armed forces were on
the increase. O the thousands of cases reported, only one had led to a
conviction. Victins feared reprisals and were reluctant to | odge conplaints
with the forces who had been responsible for the rapes. |In a recent incident,
a young Tam | woman had been gang-raped and nurdered because she refused to
marry a Sinhal ese sol dier.

8. In the community of Taniperlas in the State of Chiapas, Mxico, 190
wonen had been threatened with rape in April 1998 by paramilitary forces,
supported by the security forces, unless they and their famlies came out of
hi di ng.

9. Her organi zation urged the Sub-Comm ssion to renew the mandate of the
Speci al Rapporteur on systematic rape, sexual slavery and sl avery-like
practices during arned conflicts for one year so that she could visit the
countries nentioned and support the establishment of a fact-finding body on
systemati c rape.

10. M. YESSA (Anti-Slavery International) said that, following a televised
interview with the Chairman of SOS-Escl aves, a Mauritanian anti-slavery

associ ation, on a French channel, four |eaders of human rights NGOs had been
arrested in Mauritania in January 1998 and subsequently sentenced to

13 nmonths' inprisonment and a fine. He hinself had been sentenced

in absentia. However, thanks to a |l arge-scale international canpaign, the
Mauri t ani an Head of State had granted a “pardon” on the day that the judgenment
was confirmed.

11. Menmbers of any of 12 Mauritanian human rights NGOs coul d be charged with
“menbership of illegal organizations” and were subjected to police
intimdation if they spoke out on the issue of slavery. Applications by

SOS- Escl aves and the Mauritani an Human Ri ghts Association (AVDH) for |egal
recogni tion as associations had been turned down by the Government although

t hey had observer status with the African Comm ssion on Human and Peopl es

Ri ghts. The Governnent was not pursuing a pro-slavery policy but its silence
and inaction allowed the practice to continue and its practitioners to enjoy

i mpunity.

12. I n Decenber 1997, 10 boys aged between 4 and 6 years who had been sold
to a buyer in the United Arab Emirates for use as canel jockeys had been
repatriated fromMali to Mauritania. The Mauritanian authorities had restored
themto their famlies but had taken no | egal action. That was not an

i sol ated case. Also in Decenber 1997, a sale of 40 slaves, nostly wonmen and
children, had taken place in a locality close to the border with Mali. The
Mauritanian authorities had again taken no action against the slave traders.

Sl ave markets were hel d about once a year and the victins were forced to
remain silent by the police. Certain Mauritanian fanmlies still regarded

t hensel ves as owners of hundreds of slaves.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 4

13. SCS- Escl aves was unable to bring crimnal indemification proceedings
and had difficulty in encouraging slaves to take |egal action. There was no
specific crinme of slavery and hence no provision for punishnment under
Mauritanian | aw. However, victinms of caste servitude, both slaves and

emanci pated sl aves, were increasingly inclined to politicize their struggle
for equality. The Governnent's irresponsible attitude added to the threat of
internal instability. He urged the Sub-Conm ssion to address the issue in
terms of conflict prevention. He would also welcome coments by the
Mauritani an authorities on the abuses he had descri bed.

14. Ms. PARKER (I nternational Educational Devel opment, Inc.) having
commended the report of the Special Rapporteur on systematic rape,

sexual slavery and slavery-like practices during arned conflict

(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 13), said that war rape had been recognized as a war crine
for several centuries and was also a formof torture and i nhumane treatment.
The Japanese Governnent still refused to pay conpensation to war-rape victims,
repeating its legally unsound and insulting excuses despite intensive action
in the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts and the Sub- Conm ssion

15. Her organi zation urged the Wrking Goup on Contenporary Forms of

Sl avery to address the issue of prison |abour, especially unconpensated or
grossly underconpensated | abour. There had been wi despread all egations of
prison slave | abour in China and there was conpelling evidence froma forner
prisoner that unconpensated | abour existed in at |east one Japanese detention
centre. Such practices were also prevalent in other countries. Privatized
prisons called for special scrutiny as profit-nmaking enterprises.

16. The Worki ng G oup should also investigate credible allegations of
continuing slave | abour in Myanmar, particularly as part of a pipeline project
i nvol ving international oil conpanies. A nenber of her organization who had
been investigating the allegations had recently been arrested by the
authorities. She welconed the w thdrawal from Myanmar of the Atlantic

Ri chfield conmpany and hoped that other conpanies would follow suit.

17. M. KANE (African Commi ssion of Health and Human Ri ghts Pronoters) said
that slavery persisted not only in traditional forms but also in nore subtle
ways whose traumati c consequences were suffered by the victins for the rest of
their lives.

18. Children fromPortugal and illegal inmgrant children fromthe Bal kans,
Asia and Africa continued to be enployed illegally in Wstern Europe.
According to a French newspaper, 100,000 Haitian children were sold each year
torich famlies. The discovery by the Malian authorities of a child
trafficking network from Mauritania via Bamako in Novermber 1997 confirned that
slavery continued to exist in that country. The |eader of the anti-slavery
movement El_Hor in Mauritania had recently described the sale of 40 slaves in

paynment of a debt incurred by their master

19. In the Sudan, a | arge proportion of the Nuba, Nuer and Di nka comunities
had been reduced to slavery. Natives of the Nuba Muntains had been forced by
a food deprivation policy to mgrate in order to avoid servitude.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 5

20. In El Sal vador, hundreds of thousands of wonen were enpl oyed as
qguasi -sl aves in maquil adora conpanies. According to a recent report, over
60 per cent of the femal e “enpl oyees” had become unmarri ed nothers, because
prostitution was an unwitten clause in their enploynent contract.

21. As conpanies fromthe North were transplanted to the South, entire
societies suffered the indignities of exploitation. |In that connection, he
wel comed the activities of the Working Group on Contenporary Forns of Slavery
and of the United Nations Voluntary Trust Fund on Contenporary Forms of

Sl avery, which was unfortunately extrenely short of funds.

22. Hi s own organi zation had | aunched a Support Progranme (1998-2002) for

| ocal cooperative structures designed to eradicate contenporary forns of

sl avery. The international community nust find the political and financia
means to address such issues and United Nations bodies nust take forcefu
action through the adoption of resolutions and the establishment of nonitoring
units in certain countries to assess progress in the eradication of slavery.

23. M. KWON Jong-Sung (Liberation) said he wel conmed the final report of the
Speci al Rapporteur on systematic rape, sexual slavery and sl avery-1like
practices during armed conflict (E CN 4/Sub.2/1998/13). The appendix in
particul ar was very inportant and denonstrated the legal liability of the
Japanese Governnment in the “confort wonmen” issue. However, in Japan, serious
m sunder st andi ngs of the issue were being fuelled by the nmedia and sone
menbers of the Governnent. The facts would be verifiable only when Japan made
public the official docunents that were still classified, particularly those
of the Mnistry of Home Affairs, which was believed to have been involved in
recruiting “confort wonen” and running “confort stations”

24. Recommendati ons such as those contained in the report had thus far been
i gnored by Japan, which had instead set up the Asian Wnen's Fund, a nove

wi dely regarded as a neans of evading responsibility. There was evidence of

i nconsi stency in the Japanese Governnment's position and he called upon the
Sub- Commi ssion to adopt the report and recomend that the Japanese Gover nnent
make public hitherto classified docunents relating to the issue.

25. M. SISSON (I nternational Fellowship of Reconciliation) said that his
organi zati on had wel coned the report on mlitary sexual slavery by the

Commi ssion's Special Rapporteur, (E/ CN. 4/1998/54 and Add.1l) and the genera
recommendations it contained for preventing a recurrence of such state
violence in the future. The Japanese Governnent had both a noral and a | ega
responsibility to acknow edge the violation of international |aw on the part
of the Japanese Inperial Governnment which, in 1932, had ratified Internationa
Labour Organization (I1LO Convention No. 29 on forced and compul sory | abour
The Sub- Commi ssion's Special Rapporteur had reached simlar conclusions in her
report (E/CN. 4/Sub.2/1998/13), particularly with regard to the controversia
Asian Wonen's Fund. The report's recomendati on that the Conm ssion on Human
Ri ghts shoul d cooperate with the Japanese Governnent in gathering evidence on
those involved in “confort stations” was, however, unlikely to succeed unless
the official docunents were made avail abl e.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19

page 6

26. Al t hough the “confort wonmen” issue vividly synmbolized the violation of
human dignity and integrity typical of all fornms of slavery, it remined
controversial. For progress to be nmade, the strategies of confrontation

hitherto adopted would have to give way to strategies for reconciliation

That coul d best be achieved within the framework of a suitably mandated truth
and reconciliation comm ssion. He urged the Sub-Conm ssion to wel cone the
final report of the Special Rapporteur; to extend her mandate for a further
year and ensure w despread distribution of the report; and to take note of the
truth comm ssion nodel as a possible framework for the establishment of a
panel of experts, as recommended by the Special Rapporteur

27. M. YOSHI DA (Asian Wnen's Human Ri ghts Council) said that the new
Japanese M nister of Agriculture, Forestry and Fishery, had cast doubt on the
Japanese Arny's role in the forced abduction of “confort women” and insisted
that references to “confort wonmen” should be deleted from school textbooks.

Al t hough the M nister had subsequently accepted the Governnent's view
admtting arny responsibility, it was inportant to note that a group of
Japanese politicians took the view that Japan's involvenent in the Second
Worl d War had hel ped in the enmancipation of Asian countries.

28. The group had requested the Mnistry of Education to tighten up the

t ext book screening system- the aimof which was to ensure that the authorized
t ext books teachers were obliged to use in the classroomnet the requirenments
of the official syllabus - so as to delete references to the “confort wonmen”.
That request ran counter to the recommendati on made in the report of the
Commi ssion's Special Rapporteur, (E/ CN 4/Sub.?2/1998/54 and Add. 1), that
reference should be made to such practices in school textbooks in order to
prevent their recurrence. The Japanese people had been prevented from
obtaining a grasp of the issue by a system of censorship that allowed a
revisionist view of the question to survive. The Japanese Covernnent had a

duty to the international conmunity to abolish that system

29. Ms. VERZEGNASSI (European Union of Public Relations) said that child

| abour, the sale of children and child prostitution were still prevalent in
various parts of the world. In Pakistan, for exanple, it was estimted that
there were over 3 nmillion child workers, aged between 5 and 14, including

1 mllion girls, that w despread sexual abuse of children aged between 6
and 11 occurred and that an estinated 40,000 boys were in the sex trade.
Child |l abour and prostitution, the products of rapid population growh,
poverty, illiteracy and unenpl oynment, in conmbination with rising materia
expectations, were encouraged by nationals of the devel oped countries, putting
the future of mankind in jeopardy, since traumatized children would pass on
their traumas to their offspring

30. The child sex trade illustrated the effect of market forces at their
worst. The only renedy was to tackle the demand for such services through the
crimnal courts, but nodern | egal systens had hitherto proved ineffective.

The international conmunity, through the Sub-Conm ssion, should require
Governnments to anend their legal structures in order to deal with those found
guilty of child abuse as severely as those found guilty of hom cide, since
they killed the souls of children



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 7

31. M. ABDELBAG (World Federation of Denocratic Youth) said that, although
he had sone reservations concerning the report of the Wrking Goup on

Cont enporary Fornms of Slavery (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1998/14), there could be no doubt
that the Working Group was doing an inportant job. It should be aided inits
work by better timng and sufficient funding.

32. Sl avery and sl avery-1like practices continued to be wi despread in parts
of Sudan and in Mauritania. Sudan did not respect any of the agreenents

it had signed on the abolition of slavery, slavery-like practices and
institutions. Thousands of people in southern Sudan and the Nuba Muntains,
primarily young wonen and children, were being enslaved by tribal mlitianen
fromthe north. The situation had been exacerbated by the current
fundament al i st regine.

33. In Mauritania, it had been estimted that 90,000 or nore
Afro-Mauritanians lived in slavery or slavery-like conditions, despite the
fact that Mauritania had officially abolished slavery. Legislation had not
been backed up by effective neasures to rehabilitate and enpower the victins
or to informthemof their rights. His organization believed that the
Governnment of Mauritania was fully aware of the situation but preferred the
status quo in order to maintain the political power and wealth of the

Ar ab-Berber mnority.

34. Lastly, he condemmed those African Governnments which, in complicity
with, inter alia, the United States of Anmerica and the United Kingdom had
contributed at the fifty-fourth session of the Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts
to the withdrawal of a draft resolution recognizing and apol ogi zing for the
transatl antic slave trade as a crinme against humanity.

35. M. THI AGARAJ (Conmi ssion of the Churches on International Affairs of
the World Council of Churches) said he wished to draw attenti on to caste-based
di scrimnation and viol ence against India s untouchables, the Dalits, who had
lived in dehumani zed conditions for over 2,000 years. Although the Government
had outl awed the concept of untouchability, the |egislation was not enforced.
Dalits, who carried out the traditionally unclean occupations, were viewed

as occupying the | owest rung of the social |adder and deni ed devel opnent
opportunities, living in segregated col onies wi thout access to drinking water
or roads. Abject poverty forced the wonen, in particular, into hard manual or
agricultural labour or institutionalized prostitution

36. Despite the Governnment's assurances to the Special Rapporteur on
religious intolerance that a proposal to end discrimnation against Dalit
Christians would be put before Parlianment, no action had yet been taken. He
urged the Sub-Commi ssion to undertake a study on caste-based di scrimnation
and its manifestations in contenporary fornms of slavery in the south Asian
region.

37. Ms. MCCONNELL (North-South XXI) said that the State-supported Sinhal ese
armed forces had, for the past 50 years, been meking regular and systematic
use of rape to break the will of the Tami| conmunity and force it into

subm ssion. Meanwhile, country reports to the treaty bodi es focused on the
situation of Sinhal ese wonen, giving the inpression of progress in wonen’s




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 8

rights. 1In that way, a racial dictatorship, under the guise of denobcratic
procedures, could claimto speak on behalf of the very people it oppressed and
conceal the real situation of a disenpowered people within a nulti-nation
State fromthe international conmunity.

38. The rape and murder of an 18-year-old Tam | schoolgirl had received w de
i nternational publicity, but only because she happened to have relatives in
Col ombo and London. She had been gang-raped by 11 nenbers of the security
forces on her way home from an exami nation, and her body di smenbered. O her
menbers of her famly and a nei ghbour were also brutally nmurdered when they
came to look for her. The incident had formed the subject of a showpiece
trial in Sri Lanka, and the Governnent had been forced to exhune the bodies
froma place where up to 400 others had been buried. Despite convictions, no
change had been made to | egislation, and rape by the security forces had
continued unabated in the year following the trial

39. The npst atrocious of the recent crinmes perpetrated by the Sinhal ese
armed forces included the gang rape of a six-year-old Tam | girl in

Sept enber 1997, and the gang rape in January 1998, of a 17-year-old Tam | gir
which had | eft her paralysed fromthe wai st dowmn. |In sone cases, wonen had
di ed after being raped while in other cases they had committed suicide. Most
cases never cane to the attention of the international community.

40. In view of the fact that a racially and politically dom nant group was
usi ng rape as a systemati c weapon of war, the Sub-Comm ssion should request
the wi thdrawal of Sri Lankan forces fromthe Tam | people’ s honel and, extend
t he Speci al Rapporteur's mandate for another year, and propose that she be
sent on a fact-finding mssion to Sri Lanka.

41. Ms. SHIN Heisoo (World Alliance of Reformed Churches) said that her
organi zation had regularly drawn the attention of the United Nations to the
situation of hundreds of thousands of Asian and Dutch wonen once enslaved to
the Japanese mlitary. Reproductions of watercolours by three of the Korean
victinms woul d be posted to each expert nmenber of the Sub-Comm ssion as a

rem nder of the atrocities suffered. The Governnent of Japan must be urged to
accept legal responsibility for the crinmes and pay conpensation to the
victims.

42. The Sub- Commi ssi on shoul d adopt a resolution calling for w despread

di ssemi nation of the Special Rapporteur’s report (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1998/13),

t he subm ssion of progress reports by the Governnents concerned to the
Secretary-General, the establishnment of an international panel of experts to
prosecute war crimnals and conpensate victins, and further study by the
Speci al Rapporteur on ways of inplenmenting her recomrendati ons.

Statenents equivalent to the right of reply

43. M. MAHMOUD (Observer for Sudan) said that he regretted having to refer
once again to the malicious snmear canpai gn waged by an NGO agai nst his
country. That NGO had | ong been using its considerable resources to tarnish
the image of a people renowned for respecting the dignity of their fell ow
citizens.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 9

44, As a State party to both the Slavery Convention of 1926 and the

Suppl ementary Convention of 1956, Sudan strongly condemed sl avery and

sl avery-1like practices wherever they occurred, and had | egi sl ated agai nst
slavery in its Constitution. His Government had established a conmittee which
had toured nost of the areas in which slavery or slavery-like practices had
been all eged to have occurred. No evidence had been found to substantiate the
al l egations. DMbonitoring continued, and the international conmunity woul d be
kept inforned.

45. I ndependent human rights groups had criticized the fabricated
sl ave-trade scenari os which had reportedly, noreover, been carried out in
rebel-controlled areas. 1n 1997, African Rights had found that there was

“no evidence for centrally organi zed, governnment-directed slave raiding or

sl ave trade” and had denounced “m sinfornmed” human rights advocates in Europe
and the United States; Anti-Slavery International had reported that the charge
t hat government troops were engaged in slave raiding was “not backed by
evidence”. Lord McNair of the British House of Lords, after visiting

the Sudan in COctober 1997, had concluded that there was “a possibility of

a deliberate canpaign fromsonme quarters to discredit the Government” and
havi ng found no evidence of the practice, that there was “no sl avery,
certainly within North and South Kordofan which had been the focus of many

of the allegations”.

46. Hi s Government woul d provide | ogistic support to reach any site to al
those interested in ascertaining the truth. An open invitation to visit Sudan
was extended to the nmenbers of the Working G oup

47. M. MNE (Observer for Japan) said that his Governnent had “sincerely
addressed and settled” the issues relating to the Second World War in
conpliance with the San Franci sco Peace Treaty and other relevant bilatera
and international agreenents. Sone 80 former “confort wonen” had received a
Letter of Apology and Renorse fromthe Prine Mnister of Japan in recognition
of the serious affront to their honour and dignity. The sane nunber had
recei ved an Atonenent of 2 million Yen fromthe Japanese People.

48. The Governnent had al so provi ded consi derabl e financial resources to the
Asi an Wonen’s Fund (AWF), pledging 700 mllion yen (over 5 years) for medica
and welfare projects in the Republic of Korea, the Philippines and Tai wan,

380 mllion yen (over 10 years) for an Indonesian project targeting elderly
people and 255 nillion yen (over 3 years) for a new project in the Netherlands
aimed at inproving the living conditions of Second World War victins.

49. Hi s Government had al so provided funds to AW for various activities
relating to contenporary wonen’s issues, including the establishment of
i nternational foruns, support for NGOs and for research on the issue of
“confort wormen”. Reference was also nade to the issue in school textbooks.

50. While noting the value of the Special Rapporteur's report on systematic
rape, sexual slavery and slavery-like practices during armed conflict

(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 13), his Governnent did not agree with the |ega
interpretations expressed in its appendix. It was unable to accept the
concl usi ons and recomrendati ons requesting that it take steps to provide



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 10

redress beyond that which it was already undertaking. Furthernore, the
Sub- Commi ssi on was not the appropriate forumfor discussing specific |ega
i ssues and rendering decisions as to liability. It was nore inmportant to
focus on what could actually be done for the former “confort women”,

consi dering their advanced age.

51. Hi s Government continued to cooperate with the AWF and to make efforts
to seek the understanding of the authorities and peoples of the countries
and territories concerned. It was to be hoped that the conclusions of the

Sub- Commi ssi on woul d be consistent with its positive resolutions of the past.

52. M. Man Soon CHANG (Cbserver for the Republic of Korea) said he strongly
wel conmed the Special Rapporteur's report (E/ CN. 4/Sub.?2/1998/13), particularly
the focus in its appendi x on the governmental liability for the sexual slavery
of over 200,000 young wonen by the Inperial Japanese Arny during the

Second World War. The continuing suffering and humliation of the forner
“confort women” could not be dismssed as nmere history. A just and honourabl e
resolution of the issue would help to protect future generations of women in
armed conflicts, and would set an inportant precedent for addressing such
egregious crinmes if they were ever to be attenpted again.

53. The Japanese CGovernnent, as a responsible nenber of the internationa
comunity, was urged to satisfy the collective demands of the victins by
maki ng a sincere apol ogy and expressing its deep regret for the i nhumane acts
commtted by Inperial Japan during the Second World War. The neasures taken
by the privately-established Asian Wonmen’s Fund (AW), besi des being
insufficient, did not fully relieve governnent responsibility.

54. In an attenpt to relieve the practical needs of the Korean victins,

hi s Government had decided, on 21 April 1998, to allocate 31.5 m|lion won
(approxi mately US$ 25,000) to each surviving woman, with an additiona

7.5 mllion won (approximately US$ 6,000) from NGO funds. Financi al
conpensation did not, however, suffice. The wonen concerned desired that
their honour and dignity be restored within their lifetinmes; that desire could
be nmet only by the Japanese Governnent’s adm ssion of responsibility for past
wrongdoi ng. The reconmendations of the report were thus to be wel conmed.

55. M. LEPATAN (Observer for the Philippines) said that, while noting the
efforts made by the Japanese Governnent to fulfil its noral responsibilities,
hi s Government recogni zed both the delicacy and urgency of the issue,

consi dering the advanced age of the individuals concerned. The Japanese
Gover nnent - f unded Asi an Wonen’ s Fund (AW) had made serious efforts to
identify former “confort wonen” in collaboration with the Philippine Task
Force on Former Confort Wonen (PTCFW and had admini stered wel fare services
in coordination with the Departnment of Social Wl fare and Devel oprment.

56. The Japanese Covernnent was al so to be commended for seeking to address
contenporary wonmen’ s i ssues by providing support to NGOs, conducting research
on wonen’s rights and establishing international foruns, including a synposium
on trafficking and commerci al sexual exploitation of wonen and children



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 11

57. However, while his Governnent would continue to cooperate with the AW
it wished to reiterate its recognition of the individual rights of the forner
“confort women” to seek legal redress and conpensation fromthe Governnent of
Japan.

58. M. EIDE, having wel conmed the report of the Wbrking G oup

on Contenporary Forms of Slavery on its twenty-third session

(E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 14) and expressed his appreciation to those countries

whi ch had taken resolute action to put an end to slavery-like practices, said
that the condemmation of such practices by religious | eaders was al so nost
gratifying. 1t was sonewhat surprising, however, that certain nenbers of the
Conmi ssion on Human Ri ghts argued that the Wrking G oup was no | onger serving
a useful purpose, especially since it dealt with such (regrettably) topica

i ssues.

59. The all egati ons concerning the Sudan had been wel | -docunmented by NGOs
and confirmed by the Special Rapporteur on the country in question. Such
crimes fell under the jurisdiction of the International Crimnal Court and it
was to be hoped that the perpetrators would eventually be brought to justice.
O her issues taken up by the Working G oup, such as the traffic in wonmen and
girls for sexual exploitation and the m suse of the Internet, were matters
whi ch al so deserved the Sub-Commi ssion's support.

60. The final report by the Special Rapporteur on systenmatic rape,

sexual slavery and slavery-like practices during arned conflict
(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ 13) was to be welconed since it docunented a matter which
continued to be of great significance. Even at the end of the twentieth
century, such crines against humanity persisted

61. Unfortunately, rape was still a frequent phenonenon, even in the absence
of armed conflict, and nore effective action had to be taken to prevent it,
and to deal with the failings of rmunicipal |aw and procedure such as the
gender - based di scrimnation codified in various justice systens around the
world. Evidentiary |aws according | ess weight to evidence if presented by a
wonman, evidentiary laws in rape and social assault cases which required wonmen
to provide corroborating testinmony from nmen, and substantive | aws which
provided that a married wonman who was unsuccessful in proving that she had
been raped could then be charged with adultery were phenonena that elim nated
the possibility of effective redress. Those kinds of [aw and practice nust be
re-eval uated and reforned.

62. As for rape during arned conflict, systematic rape had been included in
the jurisdiction of the International Criminal Court both as a crinme against
humanity and as a war crine. It was a high priority that all menbers of arned

forces of every kind should be effectively disciplined and warned at the
outset of the responsibility they had to face for war crines and crines

agai nst humanity. It was essential to ensure that effective punishnent took
place - if not at the national level then at the International Crimnal Court.
He took the opportunity to urge those countries which had not supported the
adoption of the statute of the International Criminal Court to change their

m nds and do so as soon as possible.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 12

63. He proposed that the Sub-Conm ssion's sessional working group on the

adm ni stration of justice should nonitor the administration of justice of the
International Crimnal Court, particularly with respect to its role in the
prevention of inpunity. The Special Rapporteur m ght prepare a proposal for
mechani sims, i ncluding perhaps a thematic rapporteur, to deal specifically with
the occurrence of systematic rape, collect information on such practices and
report back to the Sub-Conm ssion or the Commi ssion

64. M. FAN Guoxiang said he fully endorsed the statenents in the fina
report of the Special Rapporteur on systematic rape, sexual slavery and

sl avery-1like practices during arnmed conflict (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1998/13) to the
effect that, after having denied for many years the direct involvenent of the
Japanese mlitary in establishing and supervising rape centres during the
Second World War, the Japanese Covernnent had finally recognized the extent of
such involvenent and had recently offered a nunber of public apol ogies for the
“probleni of the “confort wonen”. Despite those apol ogi es and adm ssi ons,
however, it continued to deny legal liability for the Japanese nmlitary's
actions with respect to the “establishnent and managenent” of the confort
stations, and had in July 1995 established the Asian Wnen's Fund (AW) “to
protect women's human rights in Japan and the world”. He endorsed the Specia
Rapporteur’'s reconmendations that there was a need for mechanisnms to ensure
crimnal prosecutions - with the involvenent of the Hi gh Conm ssioner for
Human Ri ghts - and for nechani snms to provide | egal conpensation, but that the
AWF could not replace the role to be played by the Japanese Government. He

al so endorsed her conclusion that the Japanese Governnent rerained |iable for
grave violations of human rights and humanitarian | aw which anpunted in their
totality to crinmes against humanity.

65. A clear distinction must be nmade between the Japanese Governnent and the
Japanese people. It was for the Governnent to be held responsible for war
crinmes during the Second World War, not for the Japanese people who had al so
been victins of the then mlitary |eadership of Japan. Confusing the

responsi bilities was unfair and could not be established legally. The
Japanese Government should be responsible politically and norally, and al so
legally: the AW could not be asked to deal with the matter

66. The Japanese CGovernnment had certainly done sonething, but it was far
from bei ng enough; it was only natural for experts and NGOs to express their
coments and criticisnms, and the Japanese Government should take them
seriously. It should think about its |legal responsibility and the Specia
Rapporteur's reconmendations. It was not, as sone argued, nerely an interna
di spute within Japanese social circles. Also, the matter should not be
dropped sinply because it had happened 50 years previously. The Japanese
Gover nment shoul d note the approach adopted by the German Governnment and the
Swi ss banks regardi ng Second World War funds.

67. M. WEI SSBRODT said that the Special Rapporteur's report had hel ped to
expand on previous work by offering concrete strategies for curtailing

vi ol ence agai nst wonen and children, and had al so noted that, even during
times of peace, wonen and children were routinely subjected to violence and
expl oi tation.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 13

68. The deval uation of wonen and girls was wi despread in nany societies, and
the international conmunity should work agai nst sexual violence and gender

i nequality, which were abuses that went beyond national boundaries.

One aspect of the problemwas illicit trafficking in wonen and children, and
the fact that the Wbrking G oup on Contenporary Fornms of Sl avery had deci ded
that it would focus on sexual trafficking at its May 1999 session, would give
it an opportunity to address the subject within a gl obal context and develop a
comon strategy.

69. While views differed concerning the situation of “sex-workers”, nost, if
not all, concerned Governnents, organizations and individuals agreed that
there was a need to end the npost grievous human rights abuses, including the
abduction of wonen and children to force theminto the sex trade. The Working
Group mght be able to focus on particular issues and particul ar regions of
concern, such as southern Asia and South-East Asia and eastern Europe. The

i ssue of sexual trafficking been further conplicated by the fact that many
traffickers currently used the Internet, so new strategi es had to be devel oped
to address the changing ways in which the trafficking industry operated.

70. The Sub- Comm ssion shoul d support the Wrking G oup on Contenporary
Forms of Slavery as it professionalized and regularized its efforts to conbat
the human rights abuses inherent in the sex trade, and the root causes

t hereof . Cooperation anong all concerned Governments, organizations and

i ndi viduals was critical to ensure the Wrking Goup's effectiveness and t hat
of its special session in May 1999. The Sub-Conmi ssion could work to
establish sone substantive reconmendati ons to be inplenmented both nationally

and internationally that would help to put an end to the practice of illicit
trafficking.
71. Ms. DAES said that the problem of systenmatic rape, sexual slavery and

sl avery-1like practices during arnmed conflict was very acute. She supported
the proposal that the study should continue. However, she had a different
view fromthat of the Special Rapporteur regarding compensation of the
“confort wonen”. Many dreadful crines had been committed during the Second
World War and, nore than 50 years later, it was tine to forget the past and
set about pronoting peaceful relations anong peoples and nations, especially
since the Japanese Covernnent had made sone arrangenents to conpensate the
worren and their famlies materially.

72. M. MAXIM speaking as a nenber of the Wirking G oup on Contenporary
Forms of Slavery, said that the G oup should endeavour to investigate in

greater depth the causes of contenporary slavery. In many such contenporary
forms, such as child |abour, forced | abour, trafficking and illegal adoptions,
corruption played an inportant role. 1t was not always possible to blanme

Governments, many of which were sinply not capable of dealing with the
problem Corruption had to be regarded as one of the mmjor causes of human
rights violations and of contenporary fornms of slavery, and as such it should
be condemmed.

73. M. PARK, having conmended the Working Group on Contenporary Fornms of
Sl avery on having dealt with the role of corruption and the m suse of the



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1998/ SR. 19
page 14

Internet for the purpose of sexual exploitation, expressed his support for its
recommendati on that the General Assenbly shoul d consider proclaimnng
2 Decenber as the day for the abolition of slavery in all its forns.

74. The Speci al Rapporteur's final report on systematic rape, sexual slavery
and sl avery-like practices during arnmed conflict (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1998/13) cane
at an opportune tine, following as it did the adoption of the statute of the
International Crimnal Court. He fully supported her forthright, objective
and bal anced concl usi ons regarding the continued denial of |ega

responsibility by the Japanese Government for crinmes of forced sexual slavery
perpetrated by the Japanese Inperial Army on a nmassive scale during the

Second World War. The report nerited recognition and distribution as an

of ficial document in all the official |anguages.

75. M. LEM NE (Cbserver for Mauritania), speaking in exercise of the right
of reply, said that the Sub-Conm ssion had carried out an in-depth exam nation
of the question of slavery in his country 20 years previously before deciding
towind up its study. It was somewhat ironic, therefore, that the topic was
bei ng rel aunched foll owi ng a nmagazine interview given by a former Muritani an
Government M nister. The issue, which possessed a high enotional charge, was
bei ng exploited by certain political circles in Mauritania follow ng their
failure at the ballot box. Baseless charges were being made for purely
political reasons. The magazine interview seenmed to expect readers to believe
that the phenonenon of slavery had di sappeared when the M nister concerned had
taken office, and reappeared five years |later when he had left office.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p. m




